
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           March 8, 2005 
                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 6 

City Council Minutes 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

                      Regular Meeting 
March 8, 2005 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on March 8, 2005, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
council chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL, DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 
 Kathrine Vanover  Brad Hanson  
  Ken Erbey   John Combs 
 Jim Wood   Steve Carrington  
 Tony Pippel 
  
Also in attendance were the following: 
  

 Tom Healy, City Manager 
Jack Snodgrass, City Attorney 
Janette Bower, City Clerk 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The following items were approved with the approval of the consent agenda: 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction – Ordinance No. 05-014: Amending Section 17.80.030 (Public Hearings) 

of Title 17 (Zoning) to Increase Notification Requirements for Zoning Map 
Amendments From 300 Feet to 600 Feet (IM 05-19) 

b. Introduction – Ordinance No. 05-015: Amending Section 17.80.081 (Property 
Owner’s Protest) of Title 17 (Zoning) to Increase the Property Owner’s Protest 
Vicinity Definition From 300 Feet to 600 Feet (IM 05-020) 

2. Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. February 22, 2005, Regular Meeting 

 
D. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Combs.  
 
E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 
 
F. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mike Madar described his opinion that Palmer is a working class City and voiced the necessity 
of timely homeowner notification regarding zoning changes in their neighborhoods. He 
explained his understanding of the timeframes involved with notifications. Mr. Madar explained 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           March 8, 2005 
                                                                                                                                Page 2 of 6 

his contact with the Borough regarding their notification procedures and was told of their use of 
ArcView. He stated that the investment in ArcView will save on labor costs and explained other 
possible ArcView applications. 
 
G. ACTION MEMORANDUMS 
 
Item 1 – AM 05-017: Authorizing the City Manager to Amend Agreement with Lounsbury and 
Associates for Design Services for the Palmer Urban Revitalization  
MOVED BY: Pippel 
SECONDED BY: Erbey 

To authorize the city manager to amend the agreement 
with Lounsbury and Associates for design services for 
the Palmer Urban Revitalization project 

 
City Manager Healy explained the history of the project. He stated that the categorical exclusion 
has been received and the environmental processes have been approved. He explained the 
requested authorization amending the agreement to include funds to complete the design service 
process. 
 
City Manager Healy explained the original proposed fee of $131,873, as the cost to complete 
design work and to prepare the plans for bid readiness. He stated that rather than approval of the 
original amount, funding for the environmental activities and design study report were approved. 
He explained amendment number 2’s authorization of funds to hire a historical consultant and 
the pre-design work required for review of historical assets. City Manager Healy explained 
council’s approval of the amendment authorizing $57,409 and stated that the funds were 
included in Lounsbury original proposal of $131,873. He made note of the size of the 
environmental document in relation to the amount of necessary work. City Manager Healy stated 
that with completion of the environmental process, the design process can begin.  
 
Council Member Pippel inquired of project control, agreements with State and the entity with 
control of funding. City Manager Healy stated that bid ready documents must be produced by 
October 1 to secure the funding. He explained that the money will passed will through the 
Department of Transportation (DOT) to the City and DOT’s involvement in the project. City 
Manager Healy stated that following various costs and fees, $750,000 construction dollars will 
be available for project completion.  
 
Council Member Pippel asked of the authority to decide what is built and when. City Manager 
Healy explained that 11 elements were originally designated. He stated that meetings will be 
held to determine which of the elements will be included in the final project.  
 
Council Member Pippel asked of the normalcy of spending 45% of overall funding on 
environment assessments and design fees. City Manager Healy explained that the complexity of 
the environment phase had been extraordinary.  
 
Council Member Hanson commented on the $42,000 of additional engineering costs. He stated 
that the original contract was not approved as originally requested because the $131,873 seemed 
to be an exorbitant amount for engineering costs. He asked of the reasonableness of fees and that 
a timeframe be provided for the completion of the project.  
 
Tom Adams, Lounsbury & Associates explained the necessity of either completion bid ready 
documents or project construction by October 1.  
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           March 8, 2005 
                                                                                                                                Page 3 of 6 

Council Member Hanson asked if the environmental assessment issue would qualify the project 
for funding extension. He expressed his frustrations with the timeframes and project costs. 
 
Council Member Pippel asked of the factors which would exclude the project from being built 
this year. Mr. Adams explained that a DSR must be completed and once submitted, DOT must 
provide approval. He explained the DOT review process. Mr. Adams stated that the odds of the 
project being built this year or not as good as being built next year.  
 
Council Member Hanson asked of the agreements with the State, the requirement reviews and 
the City’s control of the reviews. City Manager Healy explained that the review requirements are 
necessary no matter who administers the project.  
 
Council Member Pippel asked of the probability of a financial liability to the city should the 
money not be spent by October.  
 
Council Member Hanson requested that along with the approval of the amendment, a concrete 
timeline be provided from Lounsbury and the Manager to the council.  
 
Council Member Vanover requested a summary of the funding spent thus far and by whom.  
 
City Manager Healy provided the following summary of spent funds:  
 

• DOT Fees - $60,000 
• Design Service Fees - $170,000 
• Project Administration/Inspection Costs - $48,000 
• Contingency of 5% - $38,000 

 
Council Member Wood asked that in addition to an expanded summary, a timeline be providing 
indicating exactly where the stop gaps and delays have been.  
 
Council Member Carrington asked that timeline be broken out into a weekly basis.  
 

Primary Amendment to Main Motion 
Moved by: Hanson 
Seconded by: Carrington 

To amend the authorization to include: Subject 
the city manager confirming that full project 
funding meets the criteria of encumbrance by 
October 1 

 

Vote on Amendment: Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 

Item 2 – AM 05-018: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Professional Services 
Agreement with Wolf Architecture for Concept Design and Cost Estimate for a Public Safety 
Complex  
MOVED BY: Hanson 
SECONDED BY: Carrington

To authorize the city manager to enter into a 
professional services agreement with Wolf Architecture 
for concept design and cost estimate for a public safety 
complex 

 
Council Member Pippel asked of the funding source, complex location and the priority of the 
council to building a public safety complex. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           March 8, 2005 
                                                                                                                                Page 4 of 6 

City Manager Healy explained that the priority to build a public safety complex was listed under 
the state priorities. He explained the intent of the proposal was to serve as a scoping report. He 
stated his desire to place the item before the council to begin discussion about the needs of state 
offices in Palmer. He stated that the funding is still in the concept phase. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the options to build a new complex or remodel the existing 
building. City Manager Healy stated the focus is on the area surrounding the court house. 
 
Council Member Hanson stated the necessity to schedule a work session to discuss the goal of a 
new complex. He asked that information be received from the interested agencies.  
 
Mayor Combs stated that a work session has been scheduled for April 19 regarding the issue.  
 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
H. HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Item 1 – Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 05-013: Amending Chapter 2.20 (Planning 
Commission) of Title 2 (Administration and Personnel) of the Palmer Municipal Code (IM 05-
016) 
MOVED BY: Hanson 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To adopt ordinance no. 05-013. 

 

Primary Amendment to Main Motion 
Moved by: Pippel 
Seconded by: Vanover 

To remove “or of territory annexed to the city” 
from 2.20.010 A 

 
Discussion regarding the language’s applicability ensued. Attorney Snodgrass 
explained that due to the length of time council members must reside within the 
city, the language is necessary in the council’s portion of the code but 
unnecessary for the commission’s portion. 
 

Vote on Amendment: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 

Primary Amendment to Main Motion 
Moved by: Wood 
Seconded by: Hanson 

To move the Pledge of Allegiance to item C in 
section 2.20.131 

 

Vote on Amendment: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Council Member Pippel requested clarification regarding section 2.20.321 Cause for removal. He 
stated that as it presently reads, the only cause for removal are absences. Attorney Snodgrass 
explained the “among other causes” language. Discussion ensued regarding council’s desire have 
the cause language clearly defined. The council agreed that removal of commissioners should be 
for just cause rather than removal at will. 
 

Moved by: Wood 
Seconded by: Pippel 

To postpone until the March 22 meeting to 
allow for amendments to be written to clarify 
the causes for removal 

 

Vote on Amendment: Motion to postpone carried by unanimous voice vote. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           March 8, 2005 
                                                                                                                                Page 5 of 6 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
I. BIDS 
 
J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 – Authorize Amendment No. 2 for Airport Lease 97-1 (State Lease No. 2436) with the 
State of Alaska for the Forestry Facility (AM 05-011) (Postponed from the February 22 meeting) 
MOVED BY: Carrington 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To authorize amendment no. 2 for Airport Lease 97-1 
(State Lease No. 2436) with the State of Alaska for the 
Forestry Facility 

 
Council Member Pippel asked of the consumer price index regarding clerical and urban workers. 
Attorney Snodgrass stated that the former are recognized categories. Discussion ensued 
regarding the cost of living increases.  
 
City Manager Healy stated that the lease was effective on July 1, 2003, and monies will be 
recovered from that timeframe. 
 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
City Manager Healy reported on the following item: 

• Southwest Utility Extension Project – City Manager Healy, Mayor Combs and Rick 
Koch will travel to Juneau next week to lobby for additional funding for the project.  

 
M. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
N. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
The following items were placed on the table: 
 

• Letter from Wasilla Mayor Diane Keller regarding the COPS grant; and 
• Information regarding ArcView from Mr. Madar. 

 
O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Hanson stated that the Urban Revitalization project is and should be the 
priority of the City. He voiced the need for the project’s progression.  
 
Council Member Pippel highlighted a letter regarding additional parking requirement by 
business owners and stated the necessity to revisit the parking ordinance. He voiced the need to 
“toughen up” portions of large retail establishment code regarding traffic in the best interest of 
the City. He asked that City Administration examine the code to determine if the language 
requires amendments. Council Member Pippel spoke of property tax exemptions and the costs to 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                           March 8, 2005 
                                                                                                                                Page 6 of 6 

citizens who are not eligible for the exemptions. He stated his belief that the City and Borough 
should have the ability to determine which persons are eligible rather the State. He spoke of the 
Anchorage’s process to remove overhead power lines and the possibility of the Palmer moving to 
that option as well. 
 
Council Member Carrington voiced his agreement with Council Member Hanson regarding 
the Urban Revitalization project and the need for the project’s progression. 
 
Council Member Erbey explained his attendance at the Palmer Emergency Services banquet 
during the previous week where the council was presented a certificate of appreciation. He 
presented the certificate to Mayor Combs.  
 
Council Member Wood explained his attendance at the Special Needs Transportation 
Conference in Anchorage. He explained the Municipality’s involvement in the movement of 
special needs individuals and stated that he will be contacting entities within the City to discover 
their needs and the City’s possible involvement.  
 
Council Member Vanover explained her attendance at a meeting with the Downtown 
Merchant’s Association. She stated that the group was an absolute delight. She explained their 
favor of the recommended business improvement district and support of any amendments to the 
large retail establishment ordinance that protect the downtown interests. Council Member 
Vanover explained the creation of a pro and con sheet regarding Wal-Mart. She stated that the 
group had some confusion regarding when sales tax should be charged.   
 
Mayor Combs voiced his opinion regarding the 37% of costs spent on the Urban Revitalization 
project and frustrations regarding the lengthened timeframe for the project’s completion. He 
thanked members of council for their attendance of functions on his behalf. Mayor Combs 
thanked Mr. Madar for his input and research. He also thanked the Frontiersman reporter for her 
article regarding the promotional DVD and joint cooperative effort with the Chamber of 
Commerce.  
 
Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:59 p.m.  
 
 
APPROVED THIS 22nd  day of March, 2005. 
 
 

               /s/ 
       John C. Combs, Mayor 
 
 
               /s/ 
Janette M. Bower, City Clerk 


